1989

Logan City v. Ralph Lowell Huber : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

STATEMENT OF NATURE OF PROCEEDINGS

This is an appeal from a jury verdict convicting Appellant of violation of the Logan City disorderly conduct ordinance and from the sentence of the court each rendered on 1 February 1989. The appeal is taken to the Utah Court of Appeals from the Second Circuit Court, Cache County, Logan City Department pursuant to Rule 26 of the Utah Code Of Criminal Procedure title 77, chapter 35.

STATEMENT OF ISSUES PRESENTED

1. Does the Logan City Ordinance violate the protections afforded the Appellant under Article 1 Section 15 of the Constitution of the State of Utah and the First Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

2. Did the Logan City Ordinance have Constitutional application to the Appellant under the facts of this case.

3. Did the Court properly and adequately instruct the jury.

4. Did the Court, in admonishing the Appellant before the jury, diminish the possibility of a fair trial.

CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISIONS GOVERNING CASE

UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION, FIRST AMENDMENT;

"[Religious and political freedom.]

Congress shall make no law respecting an establishment of religion, or prohibiting the free exercise thereof; or abridging the freedom of speech, or of the press; or the right of the people peaceably to assemble, and to petition the Government for a redress of grievances.

UTAH CONSTITUTION ARTICLE I SECTION 15

"[Freedom of speech and of the press - Libel]

No law shall be passed to abridge or restrain the freedom of speech or of the press. In all criminal prosecutions of libel the truth may be given in evidence to the jury; and if it shall appear to the jury that the matter charged as libelous is true, and was published with good motives, and for justifiable ends, the party shall be acquitted; and the jury shall have the right to determine the law and the fact".

STATUTES AND RULES GOVERNING CASE

Utah Code Annot. 76-9-102

"(1) A person is guilty of disorderly conduct if:

(a) He refuses to comply with the lawful order of the police to move from a public place, or knowingly creates a hazardous or physically offensive condition, by any act which serves no legitimate purpose; or

(b) Intending to cause public inconvenience, annoyance, or alarm, or recklessly creating a risk thereof:

(i) He engages in fighting or in violent, tumultuous, or threatening behavior; or

(ii) He makes unreasonable noises in a public place; or

(iii) He makes unreasonable noises in a private place which can be heard in a public place; or

(iv) He engages in abusive or obscene language or makes obscene gestures in a public place; or

(v) He obstructs vehicular or pedestrian traffic.

(2) 'Public place,' for the purpose of this section, means any place to which the public or a substantial group of the public has access and includes but is not limited to streets, highways, and the common areas of schools, hospitals, apartment houses, office buildings, transport facilities, and shops.

(3) Disorderly conduct is a class C misdemeanor if the offense continues after a request by a person to desist. Otherwise it is an infraction".

77-35-26. Rule 26 — Appeals.

(1) An appeal is taken by filing with the clerk of the court from which the appeal is taken a notice of appeal stating the order or judgment appealed from and by serving a copy of it on the adverse party or his attorney of record. Proof of service of such copy shall be filed with the court.

(2) An appeal may be taken by the defendant from:

- (a) the final judgment of conviction;
- (b) an order made, after judgment, affecting the substantial rights of the defendant;
- (c) an interlocutory order when, upon petition for review, the appellate court decides that the appeal would be in the interest of justice; or
- (d) any order of the court judging the defendant by reason of a mental disease or defect incompetent to proceed further in a pending prosecution.

(3) An appeal may be taken by the prosecution from:

- (a) a final judgment of dismissal;
- (b) an order arresting judgment;
- (c) an order terminating the prosecution because of a finding of double jeopardy or denial of a speedy trial;
- (d) a judgment of the court holding a statute or any part of it invalid; or
- (e) an order of the court granting a pretrial motion to suppress evidence when, upon a petition for review, the appellate court decides that the appeal would be in the interest of justice.

(4) (a) All appeals in criminal cases shall be taken within 30 days after the entry of the judgment appealed from, or, if a motion for a new trial or

arrest of judgment is made, within 30 days after notice of the denial of the motion is given to the defendant or his counsel. Proof of giving notice shall be filed with the court.

(b) An appeal may not be dismissed except for a material defect in taking it, or for failure to perfect the appeal, or upon motion of the appellant. The dismissal of the appeal affirms the judgment unless another appeal can be, and is, timely taken.

(5) Cases appealed in which the defendant is unable to post bond shall be given a preferred and expeditious setting in the appellate court.

(6) Appeals may be submitted on briefs and if an appellant's brief is filed the appeal shall be decided even though a party, upon notice of the hearing, fails to appear for oral argument.

(7) The rules of civil procedure relating to appeals govern criminal appeals to the appellate court, except as otherwise provided.

(8) In appeals to the Supreme Court of capital cases where the sentence of death has been imposed, appellant briefs shall be filed within 60 days of the filing of the record on appeal. Respondent briefs shall be filed within 60 days of receipt of the appellant brief. All issues to be raised on appeal shall be included by each party in its appellate brief. Appellant reply briefs shall be filed within 30 days of receipt of the respondent's brief. One 30-day extension of the 60-day filing period may be granted to each party, but only upon application to the Supreme Court showing extraordinary circumstances warranting an extension. The Supreme Court shall schedule the oral arguments of the case to be heard not more than ten days after the date of filing of the final brief. Following oral arguments, the case shall be placed first on the Supreme Court's calendar, for expeditious determination.

(9) After an initial appeal has been resolved, a subsequent appeal of a capital case where the sentence of death has been imposed may not be entertained by any court, nor may a stay of execution of the sentence be granted, when the appeal does not raise any new matter not previously resolved or when new matter could have been raised at the previous appeal.

(10) In capital cases where the sentence of death has been imposed, and the defendant has chosen not to pursue his own appeal, the case shall be automatically reviewed by the Supreme Court within 60 days after certification by the sentencing court of the entire record, unless the time is extended by the Supreme Court for good cause. A case involving the sentence of death has priority over all other cases in setting for hearing and in disposition by the Supreme Court.

(11) The rules of practice for the Court of Appeals and circuit courts promulgated by the Judicial Council and approved by the Supreme Court relating to appeals from circuit courts govern criminal as well as civil appeals.

(12) An appeal may be taken to the Supreme Court or the Court of Appeals, as is appropriate, from all final orders and judgments rendered in a district court or juvenile court under the provisions of this rule.

(13) An appeal may be taken to the circuit court from a judgment rendered in the justice court in accordance with the provision of this rule, except:

(a) The case shall be tried anew in the circuit court and the decision of the circuit court is final except where the validity or constitutionality of a statute or ordinance is raised in the justice court.

(b) Within 20 days after receipt of the notice of appeal, the justice court shall transmit to the circuit court a certified copy of the docket, the original

pleadings, all notices, motions, and other papers filed in the case, and the notice and undertaking on appeal.

(c) Stay of execution and relief pending appeal are under Rule 27.

(d) All further proceedings are in the circuit court, including any process required to enforce judgment.

12-8-5. Disturbing the peace. It shall be unlawful for any person to maliciously or wilfully disturb the peace and quiet of any neighborhood, family or person, by loud or unusual noise, or by tumultuous or offensive conduct, or by threatening, traducing, quarreling, challenging to fight or fighting within the limits of Logan City.

12-8-6. Disturbances at public places prohibited. It shall be unlawful for any person to excite or cause disturbances or contention at any public place, public house, court, election, or any lawful meeting of citizens within the limits of Logan City. (out?)

12-8-7. Disturbance of religious meeting prohibited. It shall be unlawful for any person to disturb at public assembly, congregated for religious or other lawful purposes, within the limits of Logan City, by undue noise, or by offensive, unbecoming, or indecent behavior.

12-8-8. Disorderly house. It shall be unlawful for any person to keep an ill-governed house, or to suffer or permit any drunkenness, quarreling, fighting, unlawful games, riotous or disorderly conduct whatever on his premises. (rague)

12-8-9. Disorderly Conduct. (a) A person is guilty of disorderly conduct if:

(1) He refuses to comply with the lawful order of the police to move from a public place, or knowingly creates a hazardous or physically offensive condition, by any act which serves no legitimate purpose; or

(2) Intending to cause public inconvenience, annoyance, or alarm, or recklessly creating a risk thereof:

(A) He engages in fighting or in violent, tumultuous, or threatening behavior; or

(B) He makes unreasonable noises in a public place; or

(C) He makes unreasonable noises in a private place which can be heard in a public place; or

(D) He engages in abusive or obscene language or makes obscene gestures in a public place; or

(E) He obstructs vehicular or pedestrian traffic.

(b) "Public place," for the purpose of this section, means any place to which the public or a substantial group of the public has access and includes but is not limited to streets, highways, and the common areas of schools, hospitals, apartment houses, office buildings, transport facilities and shops.

(c) Disorderly conduct is a class C misdemeanor if the offense continues after a request by a person to desist. Otherwise it is an infraction.

(SEC. 12-8-9 ADDED 2/19/87)

(THIS IS A COPY OF THE LOGAN CITY ORDINANCE ON FILE IN THE CITY OFFICES.
THE MARGINAL NOTATIONS SHOWN APPEAR ON THE ORIGINAL.)

STATEMENT OF FACTS

It is alleged by the arresting officer, one Roper, a peace officer, that on 11 December 1988 at about 1:30 a.m. (T. 26) Defendant drove his Datsun around the corner of 300 North 100 East at a high rate of speed, swerving wide to the right then accelerating very rapidly past the parked position of the officer Roper at a speed which was estimated as 35 to 38 mph in a 25 mph zone (T. 27-28). Defendant stopped for the traffic semaphore and upon it changing to green pulled up in front of his business and exited his car. Roper, followed Defendant and determined to make contact based on the questionable turn and upon the estimation of speed in excess of posted limits. Upon being hailed by officer Roper, Defendant is alleged to have become immediately loud, belligerent, profane and uncooperative using offensive language and telling officer Roper to leave his private property (T. 40), to "get their fucking lights out of my car" etc. (T. 62). After alleged attempts to calm the situation, Defendant continued to remonstrate verbally, sometimes gesturing and standing as close as 18 inches to Roper (T.81). No threats were made, there was no fight and no squaring off of offers to combat by any party. Defendant was arrested and transported to jail whereupon Defendant quickly posted cash bail and walked back to his business, 1 block away. Another officer at the scene, one Monroe, taped most of the conversation and a transcript was put in evidence as follows at (t. 85 - 93);

" DEF: You're two blocks down the road.

MONROE: We weren't two blocks down the road.

DEF: You were clear the hell down by Taco Time.

MONROE: Do you really know---or do you want to know where we really were? When you came around the corner, when you came around the corner awfully fast, right at the road here, we were parked just off the road, but we do need to see your drivers license.

DEF: This is my property and your on it without my permission and that's it, that's what it boils down to. If it---I'm tired of being harassed.

MONROE: We need to see your registration, too, please.

DEF: Bullshit, now look, your on my property, this is my building, I haven't done anything wrong, I want to be left alone, I'm tired of this harassment because I come out of my bar and you guys start harassing, and I don't want it.

MONROE: We need to see your drivers license and registration.

DEF: The registration is current it's on the back and your going to run it through the radio, you can find out just as quick as I can.

MONROE: Look, Mr. Huber, were trying to be decent here.

DEF: No, your not, why did you pull me over?

MONROE: You were going too fast.

DEF: No, it's because what time it is, because you have nothing else to do and that's it.

MONROE: In just about two seconds, were not

going to be decent. Okay? We need to see the registration.

DEF: Fine, fine, fine, get your light out.

MONROE: We'll be with you in just a second.

DEF: This is a bunch of crap. You know what the car--it-- it's mine, it's always here. Get you fucking lights out of my car, goddamit, you guys piss me right off.

MONROE: Here's the deal, Mr. Huber, you are under arrest for disorderly conduct. We're going to jail. Put your hands behind your back. Turn around and put your hands behind your back.

DEF: What's the deal, here?

MONROE: You are under arrest?

DEF: For what? For what? Hold your horses, let me put my keys in my pocket.

MONROE: Okay we'll do that.

DEF: Turn my car off, can I turn my car off?

MONROE: Not now.

DEF: Wait a minute, can I call my attorney right now? This is stupider than hell, You guys want to go for this, you sit there in my car for no reason whatsoever.

ROPER: Are they too tight?

DEF: That ones way too tight.

ROPER: Would you like me to loosen them a little bit for you?

DEF: I'd like not to be wearing them. Hello. Can you explain to me why these guys are pulling this stunt?

Monroe estimated the time of the contact as between 5 and 6

minutes (T. 93).

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS

1. The Logan City Ordinance is facially defective and should be declared violative of Article I Section 15 of the Constitution of the State of Utah in that;

(a). Any abridgement of free speech is presumed void and is of primary importance to each member of society.

(b) Regardless of whether Appellant is a person aggrieved by the unconstitutional aspects of the ordinance, he has standing to assert that unconstitutionality under the overbreadth doctrine.

(c) The ordinance is void for vagueness in that there is no articulable standard with sufficient definition against which one may measure conduct.

(d) The constitutional protections afforded by the First Amendment have become somewhat cluttered by varying interpretations of the doctrine of "fighting words" and of the doctrine of "clear and present danger".

(e) All speech should be declared protected by the Utah Constitution, although if in connection with its use, the speaker becomes involved to the point that crimes are committed, that is his risk.

2. The Logan City Ordinance is facially flawed and should be declared violative of the protections afforded to the appellant by the First Amendment of the Constitution of the

United States of America in that;

(a) The terms abusive and obscene have, despite possible narrowing constructions by state courts, been declared by the United State Supreme Court to encompass protected speech

(b) The ordinance as written may be used to prohibit and punish protected speech.

(c) The terms "public inconvenience", "alarm", and "annoyance" as modified by "recklessly create a risk thereof" do not clearly limit prosecutions to speech consisting of "fighting words" or speech creating a "clear and present danger".

3. The Logan City Ordinance, as applied to the appellant under the facts of this case, is violative of the protections afforded the appellant by Article I Section 15 of the Utah Constitution and the First Amendment to the Constitution of the United State of America in that;

(a) The doctrines prescribing limitations to unfettered expression such as "fighting words" and "clear and present danger" have no application to confrontations between a citizen and police in arrest and detention situations; particularly when the initial contact was pursuant to police intrusion.

(b) Absent a face to face personal insult intended and irretrievably destined to incited an immediate violent response, no speech will support a conviction of disorderly conduct.

(c) Offensive and vulgar language, at least when not addressed to a captive audience, will not support a conviction of

disorderly conduct.

(d) The language in evidence was, as used by appellant, devoid of prurient content or connotation and was no obscene.

(e) Speech, to a public official, has a political aspect, and is absolutely protected, regardless of content, intended result or actual result.

(f) Even if, under the standard of the U.S. Supreme Court, the physical aspects of the confrontation might be considered, the mixing of speech and physical behavior in making a determination of disorderly conduct is forbidden by the questioned ordinance in its present form.

4. Instruction number 3 was given in error, over objection of appellant in that;

(a) It was a paraphrase of the entire disorderly conduct ordinance.

(b) It has no relation to the violation as pleaded by respondent.

(c) No proof was adduced respecting many elements set forth in the instruction.

(d) The instructions expanded the case into non-verbal areas and would permitted the jury to combined verbal and non verbal conduct, which is not permitted by the ordinance, in reaching their circumstances.

5. The Court, by admonishing Defendant before the jury damaged the appearance of impartiality and suggested to the jury

that he favored the Plaintiff's claims.

6. The jury was not instructed that if the disorderly conduct was terminated by the actor on request, they could find the Appellant guilty of an infraction.

POINT I

THE LOGAN CITY ORDINANCE IS FACIALLY DEFECTIVE IN ITS OVERBREADTH. THE ORDINANCE CRIMINALIZES CONDUCT PROTECTED BY ARTICLE I SECTION 15 OF THE CONSTITUTION OF THE STATE OF UTAH AND PROTECTED BY THE FIRST AMENDMENT OF THE CONSTITUTION OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA.

ARGUMENT

Regardless of the whether or not the City of Logan has forbade and criminalized the conduct for which Defendant stands convicted, the questioned ordinance enfolds constitutionally protected conduct. An analysis of constitutional protections afforded by either the Utah Constitution or the United States Constitution compels a declaration that the challenged ordinance is unconstitutional.

THE UTAH CONSTITUTION

Article I Section 15 of the Utah Constitution provides that "no law shall be passed to abridge or restrain the freedom of speech or of the press". In KEARNS - TRIBUNE CORP. v. LEWIS 685 P 2d 515, 521 (Utah 1984) the Utah Supreme Court held that "the freedom of speech and press are fundamental to the effective exercise of the ultimate power of the people". Appellant

submits that an infringement of this right as claimed by the Defendant, in light of the above cited case is so important that the time to assert the infringement need not await the perfect Plaintiff KEARNS (ibid). In the case of PROVO CITY CORP. v. WILLDEN 100 Utah Adv. Rep 7 (1989), although the Utah Supreme Court held short of declaring an ordinance violative of the Utah Constitution, the Court employed language which might guide this court to utilize the Utah Constitution in deciding this case. Citing IN RE A CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION SEVENTH DISTRICT COURT number CS-1 754 P 2d 633 (Utah 1988) for the proposition that a court should construe laws so as to carry out the legislative intent while avoiding constitutional conflicts; the court went on to observe that "in seeking a constitutional construction, we will not rewrite a statute or ignore its plain intent" WILLDEN (supra) was a freedom of speech case in which the Supreme Court observed, at page 7, that "in its zeal to eliminate such offensive behavior, Provo City has chosen to fashion a tool that sweeps far too deeply into the protected province of the First Amendment". This holding was made manifest, despite the conclusion by the court that the respondent city might forbid Defendant's alleged conduct by a properly worded ordinance.

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