1989

# Logan City v. Ralph Lowell Huber : Brief of Respondent

Utah Court of Appeals

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

At the very least, these are fighting words under Chaplinsky, supra, especially in light of Appellant's non verbal as well as verbal conduct. The conduct of the Appellant clearly was not constitutionally protected. Furthermore, the actions of the Appellant clearly were not constitutionally protected.

An ordinance similar to the one herein was found to be constitutional in Cottage Grove v. Farr, 42 OR. App. 21, 599 P. 2d 472 (1979). The ordinance read in part as follows:

"A person commits the crime of disorderly conduct if, with intent to cause public convenience, annoyance or alarm, he:

"\* \* \*

(c) Uses abusive or obscene language, or makes an obscene gesture, in a public place; or

" \* \* \*

(h) Created a hazardous or physically offensive condition by any act which he is not licensed or privileged to do."

Id at 473.

LOGAN CITY DISORDERLY CONDUCT ORDINANCE IS NOT OVERBROAD NOR  
CONSTITUTIONALLY VAGUE AS APPLIED TO THIS DEFENDANT

In construing the constitutionality of a statute or ordinance, a court should construe law so as to carry out the legislative intent while avoiding constitutional conflicts. In Re A Criminal Investigation Seventh District Court Number CS-1, 754 P.2d 633 (Utah 1988) An ordinance or statute will not be declared unconstitutional on account of vagueness if under any sensible interpretation of its language it can be given practical effect. Greaves v. State, 528 P.2d 803 (Utah 1974).

In ascertaining the constitutionality of a statute or ordinance as previously noted, the following rules of construction should be applied:

1) A Legislative enactment is presumed to be valid and in conformity with the constitution. Trade Commission v. Skaggs Drug Centers, Inc. 21 Utah 2d 431, 446 P.2d 958 (1968); Greaves v. State, supra.

2) The statute or ordinance should not be invalid unless it is shown beyond a reasonable doubt to be incompatible with some particular constitutional provision Miller v. State, 462 P.2d 421 (Alaska 1969).



3) The burden of showing invalidity of an ordinance or statute is upon the one who makes the challenge Trade Commission v. Skaggs Drug Centers, supra.

In State v. Packard, 122 Utah 369, 373, 250 P.2d 561, 563 (1952), it was recognized

that statutes should not be declared unconstitutional if there is any reasonable basis upon which they may be sustained as falling within the constitutional framework, and that a statute will not be held void for uncertainty if any sort of sensible, practical effect may be given.

In determining whether or not a statute or ordinance is vague, it must be sufficiently definite

(1) To inform persons of ordinary intelligence, who would be law abiding, what their conduct must be to conform to its requirements,

(2) To advise a defendant accused of violating it just what constitutes the offense with which he or she is charged, and

(3) To be susceptible of uniform interpretation and application by those charged with responsibility of apply and enforcing it. State v. Packard, supra, Greaves v. State, supra, State v. Owens, 638 P.2d 1182 (Utah, 1981).

On the other hand, a criminal statute is not rendered unconstitutional by the fact that its application may be uncertain in exceptional cases, so long as the general area of conduct against which legislation is directed is made plain. See 21 Am Jur. 2d, Criminal Law §17.

The ordinance herein states with sufficient clarity and conciseness the elements necessary to constitute a violation:

1) a defendant refuses to comply with the lawful order of the police to move from a public place, or knowingly creates a hazardous or physically offensive condition, by any act which serves no legitimate purpose; or

2) Defendant intends to cause a public inconvenience, annoyance, or alarm or recklessly creates a risk thereof:

a) engages in fighting or in violent, tumultuous or threatening behavior; or

b) makes unreasonable noises in a public place; or

c) engages in abusive or obscene language or makes obscene gestures in a public place.

Taking all the elements into account, the crime specifically defines the outer perimeters of conduct. In order to violate the ordinance, the above elements must exist.

In Cottage Grove v. Farr, 42 Or. App. 21, 599 P.2d 472, 473 (1979), a local ordinance similar to the ordinance in question declaring that

"A person commits the crime of disorderly conduct if, with intent to cause public inconvenience, annoyance or alarm, he:

"\* \* \*

(c) Uses abusive or obscene language,  
or makes an obscene gesture, in a public  
place; or

"\* \* \*

(h) Created a hazardous or physically  
offensive condition by any act which he  
is not licensed or privileged to do."

was found to be constitutional.

In State v. Theobald, 645 P.2d 50 (Utah 1982) the Utah Supreme Court found the Utah Statute prohibiting interfering with a public servant (Utah Code Annotated (1953) as amended) §76-8-301) not to be unconstitutionally vague. In this case, defendant was stopped at a road block and requested to produce his driver's license and vehicle registration. Defendant angrily asked why he had to go through the process because he had been stopped earlier that day. Defendant flashed the requested document at the officer, but the officer was unable to adequately review the documents so he then asked to see them again. Defendant refused, and defendant was then ordered out of his truck. Defendant got out and clenching his fists, made threatening moves toward the officer. Defendant was arrested then for interfering with a public servant.

Affirming defendant's conviction under a state statute prohibiting any person from addressing "any offensive, devisive or annoying words to any other person lawfully in any street or public place", for calling a police officer a "God damned racketeer" and a "damned fascist", the United

States Supreme Court in Chaplinsky v. New Hampshire, 315 US 563, 62 S. Ct 166, 86 L. Ed 1031, (1942), rejected the defendant's argument that the statute was so vague and indefinite as to render a conviction thereunder a violation of due process. The Court said that the statute was narrowly drawn and limited to define and punish specific conduct lying within the domain of state power, namely, the use in a public place of words likely to cause a breach of the peace. A statute punishing verbal acts, carefully drawn so as not unduly impair liberty of expression is not too vague for a criminal law.

Now look at the facts of the cases cited by Appellant in support of his argument.

Lewis v. City of New Orleans, 415 U. S. 130, 93 S. Ct 970, 39 L. Ed 2d 214 (1974) held an ordinance unconstitutional that made it unlawful as a breach of the peace "for any person wantonly to curse or revile or to use obscene or opprobrious language toward or with reference to " a city policemen while in the actual performance of his duties. It was held unconstitutional where the state courts had not construed the statute as being limited to "fighting words" which by their very utterance narrowly defined the words of the ordinance so as to limit its application to "fighting words". Arguably the statute would have been constitutionally upheld if the state courts had construed the statutes as being limited to "fighting words".

Oratowski v. Civil Service Commission of City of Chicago, 3 Ill App. 2d 551, 123 N.E. 2d 146 (1954), involved an administrative review of a police officer's action when after being called an "ignorant jerk" because a squad car was parked in a no parking zone, the officer arrested a indignant motorist who had just received a ticket for illegal parking for disorderly conduct. There was considerable evidence of physical injury to the motorist in the course of the arrest. This was probably been why the court noted that "an officer of the law must exercise the greatest degree of restraint in dealing with the public. He must not conceive that every threatening or insulting word, gesture, or motion amounts to disorderly conduct." Oratowski, supra, at 151. The present case is a criminal case not an administrative case, and there is no evidence of physical injury to the Appellant as a result of the arrest.

In State v. John W, 418 A2d 1097, 14 ALR 4th 1238 (Me. 1980), the defendant screamed at the officer, "Hey, turn around and come back here" and "Hey, you fucking pig, you fucking kangaroo." The officer then ordered defendant to get back into his car. Defendant yelled, "Fuck you". Then defendant was arrested for disorderly conduct. This case involved no face-to-face confrontation and only verbal conduct.

In fact, the court noted in State v. John W, supra at 1245 that the United States Supreme Court in Chaplinsky, supra, contemplated

"That courts enforcing disorderly conduct statutes must look at the actual situation in which the words were used, in order to punish only words which, when they were used were 'plainly likely' to cause a breach of the peace. In particular, the fact finder must consider those personal attributes of the addressee which reasonable apparent because those attributes are a part of the objective situation in which the conduct occurred (emphasis added).

Norwell v. Cincinnati, 414 US 14, 94 S. Ct 187, 38 L. Ed 2d 170, (1973) held application of the disorderly conduct ordinance violated Defendant's constitutionally protected right of speech because he had been arrested and convicted merely because of his verbal protest of the officer's treatment of him and not because of his physical acts.

Finally, Papish v. The Board of Curators of the University of Missouri, et al 410 US 667, 93 S. Ct 1197, 35 L. Ed 2d 618, ren den 411 US 960, 93 S. Ct 1921, 36 L. Ed 2d 419, (1973) involved the dismissal of a student by a university which is not the case herein.

As Justice Jackson dissenting in Saia v. New York, 334 US 558 571, 68 S. Ct 1148, 92 L. Ed 1574, (1948) warned of the pitfalls of the kind of constitutional analysis Appellant is requesting herein

But I did not suppose our function was that of a council of revision. The issue before us is whether what has been done has deprived this appellant of a constitutional right. It is the law as applied that we review, not the abstract, academic questions which it might raise in some more doubtful case. (Emphasis added)

In the instance case, the officer stopped Appellant based upon their observation of a vehicle making a wide turn, getting into some small pea gravel and starting to slide along with rapid acceleration (T. 28 ln 1-8). The officers were working on a specific detail, alcohol enforcement (T. 41 ln 9-11).

The Appellant was stopped and asked to produce his driver's license (T. 40 ln 22-23). Appellant responded, "Fuck you, I'm not going to give it to you" (T. 40 ln 25). Appellant continued yelling and shouting at the officers, "Fuck you"; "This is bullshit" and the like (T. 41 ln. 18). The officer was facing the Appellant with the Appellant moving closer to the officer and the officer backing away (T. 42 ln 3-12). Much of the conversation was recorded and is contined herein in the Statement of Facts. But just as important as the language of "Fuck you", "Bullshit", "God-damn", "Hell" and "Piss me off" (T. 97-100), is the manner in which Appellant spoke the words and his conduct. Officer Monroe testified that the situation was becoming so violent, he felt that there was going to be a fight, Officer Roper

was in danger (T. 84 ln 9-12). In addition there is reference to Appellant clenching his fists and struggling until the handcuffs were put on him (T. 115 ln 20-25 to T. 116 ln 1-3).

In light of the facts herein, Logan City Disorderly Conduct Ordinance is not overbroad nor unconstitutionally vague as applied to Appellant.

3

THE JURY WAS PROPERLY AND  
ADEQUATELY INSTRUCTED BY THE COURT

Appellant in his brief cites no authority for the proposition that the Court was bound upon giving jury instruction number 2 or 3 to modify or explain the instruction in light of the required elements of "fighting words" and "clear and present danger".

Furthermore, any error that may have occurred by failure of the Court to explain fighting words and clear and present danger was harmless error in light of the facts of this case. See cases on harmless error set forth in point 5 below.



In the instance case, the officer stopped Appellant based upon their observation of a vehicle making a wide turn, getting into some small pea gravel and starting to slide along with rapid acceleration (T. 28 ln 1-8). The officers were working on a specific detail, alcohol enforcement (T. 41 ln 9-11).

The Appellant was stopped and asked to produce his driver's license (T. 40 ln 22-23). Appellant responded, "Fuck you, I'm not going to give it to you" (T. 40 ln 25). Appellant continued yelling and shouting at the officers, "Fuck you"; "This is bullshit" and the like (T. 41 ln. 18). The officer was facing the Appellant with the Appellant moving closer to the officer and the officer backing away (T. 42 ln 3-12). Much of the conversation was recorded and is contined herein in the Statement of Facts. But just as important as the language of "Fuck you", "Bullshit", "God-damn", "Hell" and "Piss me off" (T. 97-100), is the manner in which Appellant spoke the words and his conduct. Officer Monroe testified that the situation was becoming so violent, he felt that there was going to be a fight, Officer Roper was in danger (T. 84 ln 9-12). In addition there is reference to Appellant clenching his fists and struggling until the handcuffs were put on him (T. 115 ln 20-25 to T. 116 ln 1-3).

Appellant's words were definitely fighting words as defined in Chaplinsky, supra - words which by their very utterance inflict injury or tend to incite an immediate breach of peace, and there was a clear and present danger to officer Roper.

4

THE COURT PROPERLY CHARGED THE JURY WITH  
THE ELEMENTS OF DISORDERLY CONDUCT

Jury Instruction number 3 upon Appellant's timely objection was amended by the Court to delete that portion that dealt with obscene gestures to conform with the evidence (T. 155 ln 18-21) and the jury was left to decide the issue (T. 156 ln 15-16).

Rule 4 of the Utah Rules of Criminal Procedure, Utah Code Annotated (1953 as amended) §77-35-4 provides that an information shall set forth the offense "by using the name given to the offense by common law or by statutes by stating in concise terms the definition of the offense sufficient to give the defendant notice of the charge".

Any error that may have occurred by surplus verbage

from the ordinance contained in the instruction was harmless error. See cases on harmless error set forth in Point 5, below.

There was sufficient evidence from which the jury could have found the Defendant guilty of disorderly conduct. There was a face-to-face confrontation with Appellant yelling and shouting "fuck you", "bullshit", "Goddamn", "Hell" and "piss me off" at the officer. The officer was backing up to diffuse the situation (T. 92-100). As officer Monroe testified, it was becoming violent and he believed there was going to be a fight (T. 84 ln 9-12)

5

COURT PROPERLY ADMONISHED APPELLANT NOT TO  
MAKE GESTURES IN THE PRESENCE OF THE JURY

In the present case, the following exchange took place  
(T.61 ln 8 to 62 ln 5):

"Mr. Huber:	I'm having a hard time swallowing this
Mr. Brady:	Maybe he needs a drink.
The Court:	Well, I realize that, but I'm admonishing you, Mr. Huber, to not make any gestures in the presence of this jury.

Mr. Huber: Okay. I'm sorry, your Honor

The Court: You'll have your chance to testify when your turn comes, and I don't want you to shake your head one way or another. Just sit there and listen to the--

Mr. Lauritzen: Well, I object to that, your Honor. He can certainly do that, that's not testimony.

The Court: He's not going to do it in my Court, Mr. Lauritzen I want you to understand that.

Mr. Lauritzen: Well, I continue my objection, because I can't believe--

The Court: You may have your objection. You may proceed.

Mr. Lauritzen: Thank You."

Any prejudice that may have occurred was due to Appellant's own gestures and words, "I'm having a hard time swallowing this," not the action of the Court nor the prosecutor. In order to assure a fair trial, the Court properly admonished the Appellant not to make any more gestures in the presence of the Jury.

If any error occurred by such admonition, it was corrected by Jury Instruction 14 providing as follows:

If during the trial the Court has said or done anything which has suggested to you that it is inclined to favor the claims or position of either party, you will not permit yourselves to be influenced by any such suggestion.

The Court has not intended to indicate any opinion as to which witnesses are, or are not, worthy of belief, nor which party should prevail. If any expression has seemed to indicate an opinion relating to any of these matters, you should disregard it, because you are the exclusive judges of the facts.

At the very most, said admonition was harmless error.

Utah Code Annotated (1953 as amended) Section 77-35-30(a) provides "(a)ny error, defect, irregularity or variance which does not affect the substantial rights of a party shall be disregarded.

In State v. Knight, 734 P.2d 913, (Utah 1987), the Utah Supreme Court stated,

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